

July 1, 2014

VIA ELECTRONIC FILING AND OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission P.O. Box 47250 1300 S. Evergreen Park Drive SW Olympia, WA 98504-7250

Attn: Steven V. King Executive Director and Secretary

Re: Docket UE-111880 REVISED—2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Report

Pacific Power and Light Company (Company) submits an original and two copies of the Company's revised 2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Report.

During review of the 2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Report submitted on May 30, 2014, the Washington Demand-Side Management Advisory Committee and Public Counsel requested that the Company update the report to reflect an adjustment to the Home Energy Savings program attic insulation measures, due to reconciliation still being performed at the time the report was originally filed on May 30, 2014.

If you have any informal inquiries regarding this matter, please contact Natasha Siores, Director, Regulatory Affairs & Revenue Requirement, at (503) 813-6583.

Sincerely,

Kathingn Hymon / Nes

Kathryn Hymas Vice President, Demand-Side Management

Enclosure



2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Report

Washington

Revised Filed June 30, 2014

Table of Contents

Introduction	. 3
Executive Summary	. 4
Energy Independence Act (I-937) Commerce Conservation Report	. 5
Biennial Target Compared to Actual	. 7
Savings Reporting Adjustments	10
Supporting Documents for Conservation	18
Appendices	19
Appendix 1 – 2012-2013 Plan Condition Requirements and Compliance	19
Appendix 2 – Washington Verification of Savings Review	19
Appendix 3 – NEEA Memorandum of 2012-2013 Final Savings	19

Introduction

PacifiCorp's, d.b.a. Pacific Power & Light Company ("PacifiCorp" or the "Company") 2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Report is being submitted to the Washington Department of Commerce ("Commerce") and Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission ("Commission") in response to reporting requirements established as part of the Energy Independence Act. The report is consistent with chapter 19.285 Revised Code of Washington, section 70 which states:

(1) On or before June 1, 2012, and annually thereafter, each qualifying utility shall report to the department on its progress in the preceding year in meeting the targets established in RCS 19.285.40, including expected electricity savings from the biennial conservation target, expenditures on conservation, actual electricity savings results, the utility's annual load for the prior two years, the amount of megawatt-hours needed to meet the annual renewable energy target, the amount of megawatt-hours of each type of eligible renewable resource acquired, the type and amount of renewable energy credits acquired, and the percent of its total annual retail revenue requirement invested in the incremental cost of eligible renewable resources and the cost of renewable energy credits."

This report is also consistent with the guidelines set forth in WAC 480-109-040(1) and Condition (8)(h) in Docket UE-111880, Order 01, addressing reporting requirements.

As directed in Docket UE-100523 memorandum dated May 4, 2012, two separate filings will be submitted for "Conservation" and "Renewables". This report is addressing the Conservation target and savings.

Consistent with the requirement to pursue all cost-effective, reliable and feasible conservation, the Company completed a comprehensive conservation potential assessment followed by economic resource screening and selection through the Company's Integrated Resource Planning process. The resulting ten-year conservation forecast and biennial target was filed with and approved by the Commission in Docket UE-111880.

Executive Summary

The Company has achieved its 2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Target as set forth in Docket UE-111880, PacifiCorp's Ten-Year Conservation Potential and 2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Target.

A summary of 2012-2013 electric conservation targets, expenditures and savings results are provided below.

	SAVINGS (aMW)	SAVINGS (MWH)	EXPENDITURES
Achieved	12.78	111,923	\$19,461,529
Target	9.055	79,322	\$20,892,766
Percent of Target	141%	141%	93%

Consistent with the conditions established by the Commission in Docket UE-111880 Order 01, the cost-effectiveness has been determined based on the Total Resource Cost (TRC) test incorporating the 10 percent conservation benefit and risk adder consistent with the Northwest Power and Conservation Council's approach. Using this test, the benefit to cost ratio for the Company's 2012-2013 Biennial Conservation savings was 2.31^{1} .

Working in partnership with its customers, Commission staff, and demand side management advisory group members, the Company achieved these results while adhering to the conditions established by the Commission in Docket UE-111880. Appendix 1 summarizes the Company's compliance.

¹ Savings delivered by energy efficiency programs for end use customers constitute more than 99% of the reported savings. These savings along with their reported costs were used to calculate the cost effectiveness. The cost effectiveness result provided does not include savings or cost associated with the Distribution Efficiency or Production Efficiency Initiatives.

Energy Independence Act (I-937) Commerce Conservation Report

Energy Independence Act (I-937) Conservation Report 2014

Utility	PacifiCorp (dba Pacific Power)
Report Date	6/30/2014 Revised
Contact Name/Dept	Natasha Siores
Phone	(503) 813-6583
Email	natasha.siores@pacificorp.com

399,000 to 402,031	76,291 to 79,322	391,777	74,703		
(MWh)	Target (MWh)	(MWh)	Target (MWh)		
Year Potential	2012 - 2013	Year Potential	2014 - 2015		
2012-2021 Ten		2014-2023 Ten			
2012 - 2013 Planning		2014 - 2015 Planning			
Planning					

Summary of Achievement and Targets							
2012-2013 2014-2015							
	Biennial		Biennial				
Target (MWh)	76,291 to 79,322	Target (MWh)	74,703				
Achievement (MWh)	111,923						
Difference (MWh)	(35,641) to (32,61	0)					

Achievement						
	2012 Achi	evement				
Conservation by Sector	MWh	Utility Expenditures (\$)				
Residential	9,516	\$2,088,600				
Commercial	13,334	\$2,565,569				
Industrial	12,738	\$2,451,122				
Agriculture	107	\$7,734				
Distribution Efficiency		\$146,618				
Production Efficiency	24	\$231,495				
NEEA	15,154	\$1,218,412				

2013 Ac	chievement

MWh	Utility Expenditures (\$
17,048	\$2,402,71
8,054	\$2,022,455
20,584	\$2,769,830
658	\$72,675
-	
55	
14,652	\$1,266,576

Note: Expenditure amounts do not include any customer or other non-utility costs.

Total	50,872	\$10,055,014	61,051
Prior/New programs		-\$1,836	
Measure Data Documentation		\$8,021	
Potential Study		\$125,843	
Program Evaluations		\$751,468	
Outreach & Comm		\$209,022	
School Education		\$252,946	
Conservation expenditures <i>NOT</i> included in sector expenditures			

61,051	\$9,406,515
	\$83,840
	\$40,704
	\$430,407
	\$241,213
	\$76,104

Utility PacifiCorp (dba Pacific Power)

Description of Methodology:

As permitted by WAC 480-109-010(1)(b)(i), PacifiCorp has elected to utilize its 2011 Integrated Resource Plan ("IRP") for establishing its projected ten-year conservation potential for its Washington service area. PacifiCorp elected to utilize the 2011 IRP as the source for its conservation potential and biennial target as it more accurately represents the Company's resource position, resource options and resource costs than does the regional power plan. More importantly, the 2011 IRP had available more representative data on the Company's conservation potential in Washington. The Company's 2011 IRP was informed by the conservation potential identified in PacifiCorp's Assessment of Long-Term System-Wide Potential for Demand-Side and Other Supplemental Resources ("conservation potential assessment"). Completed in March 2011 by The Cadmus Group, Inc., the Company's conservation potential assessment represents an independent and reliable assessment of the magnitude, timing, and costs of conservation potential available specific PacifiCorp, providing the Company a significant advantage in the development of its Washington conservation potential and biennial target. Unlike the regional avoided cost average data and sales allocation methodology used in the regional power plan to approximate economic potential available to each utility in the region, the use of PacifiCorp's 2011 IRP, informed by the service area specific conservation potential assessment, provides for the most reliable and accurate conservation forecast for both resource planning and the development of the Company's Washington conservation potential and biennial target.

Conservation Notes:

Biennial Target Compared to Actual

		Forecast 2012			Actual 2012		
Energy Efficiency Program (Tariff Scl	nedule #)	kWh/Yr Savings (at generator)	Syst Ex	ems Benefits Charge penditures	kWh/Yr Savings (at generator)	Sy:	stems Benefits Charge xpenditures
Low Income Weatherization (114)		246,187	\$	600,000	226,008	\$	606,108
Refrigerator Recycling (107)		1,174,644	\$	220,748	1,179,231	\$	247,055
Refrigerator Recycling - Savings Reporting Adjustmer	nt				20,217		
Home Energy Savings (118)		6,614,077	\$	1,356,699	6,636,581	\$	1,135,181
Home Energy Savings - Savings Reporting Adjustmen	nt				(377,823)		
Home Energy Reports		1,289,719	\$	100,469	1,950,461	\$	100,257
Home Energy Reports - Savings Reporting Adjustmer	nt				(118,716)		
Total Residential		9,324,627		2,277,916	9,515,959	\$	2,088,600
Energy FinAnswer (125)		2,358,615	\$	532,927	2,399,061	\$	473,104
FinAnswer Express (115)		8,981,542	\$	1,774,577	10,934,464	\$	2,092,466
Total Commercial		11,340,157		2,307,504	13,333,525	\$	2,565,569
Energy FinAnswer (125)		10,406,786	\$	1,890,809	10,697,719	\$	1,900,245
FinAnswerExpress (115)		1,946,898	\$	467,659	2,147,640	\$	558,612
Total Industrial		12,3 53,684		2,358,468	12,845,3 59	\$	2,458,856
Total - current Company programs		33,018,468		6,943,888	35,694,843	\$	7,113,026
Northwest Energy Efficiency Alliance (NEEA)		9,601,951	\$	1,157,000	13,610,780	\$	1,218,412
NEEA - Savings Reporting Adjustment				_	1,543,257		
Energy Education in Schools			\$	337,384		\$	252,946
Total Company programs including, NEEA and other cor	npany initiatives	42,620,419		8,438,272	50,848,88 0		8,584,383
Customer Outreach/Communication			\$	250,000		\$	209,022
Program Evaluations			\$	669,870		\$	751,468
Potential Study Update/Analysis			\$	117,336		\$	125,843
Measure Data Documentation			\$	5,360		\$	8,021
Res. Admin of Prior Programs			\$	1,600		\$	(1,836)
Total System Benefits Charge Expenditures			\$	9,482 ,438		\$	9,676,902
Distribution Efficiency		1,192,292	\$	132,000		\$	146,618
Production Efficiency		23,100	\$	246,773	23,594	\$	231,495
	Target 2012 (high end of target)				Actual 2012	P	ercentage of Target
Total aMW for 2012	4.36				5.81		133%
Total MWh for 2012	38,194				50,872		133%

2012 Biennial Forecast Compared to Actual

Notes:

Conservation Biennial Target established as of January 31, 2012 Docket No. UE-111880

Forecast establised in 2012-2013 Business Plan - Revision 2, November 1 ,2012

Actual savings at generator include line losses between the customer site and the generation source using the most curent study as noted in the 2012 and 2013 Annual Report on Conservation Acquisition.

FinAnsw er Express Industrial includes Agricultural savings.

2013 Biennial Forecast Compared to Actual

		Foreca	ast 2013	Actua	nl 201	3
Energy Efficiency Program (Tariff S	ichedule #)	kWh/Yr Savings (at generator)	Systems Benefits Charge Expenditures	kWh/Yr Savings (at generator)	Sys Ex	tems Benefits Charge cpenditures
Low Income Weatherization (114)		286,546	\$ 700,000	280,492	\$	700,365
Refrigerator Recycling (107)		1,722,336	\$ 314,525	1,030,190	\$	210,149
Home EnergySavings (118)		9,505,084	\$ 1,674,970	9,213,887	\$	1,353,196
Home Energy Savings - Savings Reporting Adjustme	ent			129,498		
Home Energy Reports		5,049,207	\$ 132,120	6,048,908	\$	139,002
Home Energy Reports - Savings Reporting Adjustme	ent			345,121		
Total Residential	성장님과 고 지하겠네요.	16,563,172	2,821,615	17,048,095	\$	2,402,711
Energy FinAnswer (125)		2,369,139	\$ 544,976	449,322	\$	77,948
FinAnswer Express (115)		7,701,672	\$ 1,567,351	7,604,643	\$	1,944,506
Total Commercial		10,070,811	2,112,327	8,053,966	\$	2,022,455
Energy FinAnswer (125)		15,353,250	\$ 2,557,668	16,037,948	\$	1,965,548
FinAnswer Express (115)		1,669,465	\$ 413,048	5,203,461	\$	876,957
Total Industrial		17,022,715	2,970,716	21,241,408	\$	2,842,505
Total - current Company programs		43,656,698	7,904,658	46,343,469	\$	7,267,670
Northwest Energy Efficiency Alliance (NEEA)		9,592,455	\$ 1,212,456	16,871,633	\$	1,266,576
NEEA - Savings Reporting Adjustment				(2,219,692)		
Energy Education in Schools			\$ 82,000		\$	76,104
Total Company programs including, NEEA and other co	ompany initiatives	53,249,153	9,199,114	60,995,410		8,610,350
Customer Outreach/Communication			\$ 250,000		\$	241,213
Program Evaluations			\$ 516,000		\$	430,407
Potential Study Update/Analysis					\$	40,704
Measure Data Documentation			\$ 16,696		\$	83,840
Res. Admin of Prior Programs			\$ 1,600			
Total System Benefits Charge Expenditures			9,983,410		\$.	9,406,514
Distribution Efficiency		1,127,820			\$	-
Production Efficiency		54,120		55,332	\$	-
	Target 2013 (high end of target)			Actual 2013	Pe	rcentage of Target
Total aMW for 2013	4.70			6.97		148%
Total MWhfor 2013	41,172			61,051		148%

Notes:

Conservation Biennial Target established as of January 31, 2012 Docket No. UE-111880

Forecast establised in 2012-2013 Business Plan - Revision 2, November 1 ,2012

Actual savings at generator include line losses between the customer site and the generation source using the most current study as noted in the 2012 and 2013 Annual Report on Conservation Acquisition.

FinAnsw er Express Industrial includes Agricultural savings.

	Forecast 2	Forecast 2012 + 2013 **)12 + 2013
Energy Efficiency Program (Tariff Schedule #)	kWh/Yr Savings (at generator)	Systems Benefits Charge Expenditures	kWh/Yr Savings (at generator)	Systems Benefits Charge Expenditures
Low Income Weatherization (114)	532,733	\$ 1,300,000	506,500	\$ 1,306,473
Refrigerator Recycling (107)	2,896,980	\$ 535,273	2,209,421	\$ 457,203
Refrigerator Recycling - Savings Reporting Adjustment			20,217	
Home Energy Savings (118)	16,119,161	\$ 3,031,669	15,850,468	\$ 2,488,376
Home Energy Savings - Savings Reporting Adjustment			(248,325)	
Home Energy Reports	6,338,926	\$ 232,589	7,999,369	\$ 239,259
Home Energy Reports - Savings Reporting Adjustment			226,405	
Total Residential	25,887,799	\$ 5,099,531	26,564,054	\$ 4,491,311
Energy FinAnswer (125)	4,727,754	\$ 1,077,903	2,848,383	\$ 551,052
FinAnswer Express (115)	16,683,214	\$ 3,341,928	18,539,108	\$ 4,036,972
Total Commercial	21,410,968	\$ 4,419,831	21,387,491	\$ 4,588,024
Energy FinAnswer (125)	25,760,036	\$ 4,448,477	26,735,666	\$ 3,865,792
FinAnswer Express (115)	3,616,363	\$ 880,707	7,351,101	\$ 1,435,569
Total Industrial	29,376,399	\$ 5,329,184	34,086,767	\$ 5,301,361
Total - current Company programs	76,675,166	\$ 14,848,546	82,038,312	\$ 14,380,696
Northwest Energy Efficiency Alliance (NEEA)	19,194,406	\$ 2,369,456	30,482,413	\$ 2,484,987
NEEA - Savings Reporting Adjustment			(676,435)	
Energy Education in Schools		\$ 419,384		\$ 329,050
Total Company programs including, NEEA and other company initiatives	95,869,572	\$ 17,637,386	111,844,290	17,194,734
Customer Outreach/Communication		\$ 500,000		\$ 450,235
Program Evaluations		\$ 1,185,870		\$ 1,181,875
Potential Study Update/Analysis		\$ 117,336		\$ 166,547
Measure Data Documentation		\$ 22,056		\$ 91,861
Res. Admin of Prior Programs		\$ 3,200		\$ (1,836)
Total System Benefits Charge Expenditures				\$ 19,083,416
Distribution Efficiency	2,320,112	132,000		\$ 146,618
Production Efficiency	77,220	246,773	78,925	\$ 231,495

2012 - 2013 Biennial Forecast Compared to Actual

	Target 2012+2013 * (high end of target)	Actual 2012+2013	Percentage of Target
Total aMW for 2012 & 2013	9.055	12.78	141%
Total MWh for 2012 & 2013	79,322	111,923	141%

* Conservation Biennial Target established as of January 31, 2012 Docket No. UE-111880

** Forecast establised in 2012-2013 Business Plan - Revision 2, November 1 ,2012

Notes:

Actual savings at generator include line losses between the customer site and the generation source using the most curent study as noted in the 2012 and 2013 Annual Report on Conservation Acquisition.

FinAnsw er Express Industrial includes Agricultural savings.

.

Savings Reporting Adjustments

In the Washington Conservation Working Group, parties agreed "to the extent practicable, there should be consistency between the use of prescriptive unit energy savings estimates in the establishment of the biennial target and the reliance on those same savings estimates in the utility's demonstration that it met the biennial target."² Consistent with this approach, the results provided in the Company's 2012 and 2013 Annual Reports on Conservation Acquisition have been adjusted, incorporating the key planning assumptions used in establishing the 2012-2013 target. The adjustments are discussed in detail in the following sections.

Refrigerator Recycling

Kit savings for Refrigerator Recycling were reported for the 2012 program year using 23 kWh per kit instead of 36 kWh per kit. As a result, the Company is adjusting the savings for 2012 with an increase of 18,434 kWh at site to reflect the correct value of 36 kWh per kit.

The savings calculation adjustment is provided in Table 1.

Table 1
2012 Refrigerator Recycling Kit Adjustment Calculations

	2012 kWh (Gen)	Source/notes
Refrigerator Recycling	1,179,231	Annual report 2012 - table 6
	18,434	Reported 23 kWh per kit, revising to 36 kWh per kit. (1,418 kits * 13 kWh increase)
	20,217	Savings adjustment at Generation include line loss percentage
	1,199,448	Revised Reporting total for Refrigerator Recycling for 2012

Home Energy Savings

The Washington Savings Verification and Reporting Process Review³ identified discrepancy of savings with insulation. As a result, the third party administrator researched this further and identified the adjustment needed for the 2012 - 2013 biennial reporting period.

- 1. Floor insulation. The adjustment resulted in a .04 kWh reduction per square foot for nine customers in 2012 and 51 customers in 2013. These adjustments resulted in a total decrease of 1,980 kWh at site.
- 2. Attic insulation. The adjustment resulted in a UES reduction of 0.12 kWh per square foot for three customers in 2012 and 13 customers in 2013. The

² Washington Conservation Working Group Consensus Document as of June 30, 2011.

³ See Appendix 2 for Savings Verification Report in support of Docket UE-111880 Order 01 section (6)(f).

adjustment was the result of an application fuel type error by the program administrator. These adjustments resulted in a decrease of 8,164 kWh at site.

The total decrease in savings for these two measures resulted in a decrease of 10,144 kWh at site or -0.07% of Home Energy savings during the biennial period.

In addition, savings adjustments were required for residential lighting, heat pump water heaters and refrigerators which were identified in Appendix 4 of PacifiCorp's Ten-Year Conservation Potential and 2012-2013 Biennial Conservation Target Report. These adjustments align planning and reporting assumptions.

2012 Reporting	Units	UES reported	UES from 2011 CPA	UES difference (planning – reported)	Impact * (unit x savings)
Standard CFL	187,862	20.35	18.31	(2.03)	(381,921)
Specialty CFL	36,516	23.10	24.61	1.51	55,151
LED	736	36.10	36.12	0.02	15
Total					(326,755)
2013 Reporting					
Standard CFL	207,395	17.78	18.31	0.53	110,718
Specialty CFL	100,282	24.44	24.61	0.17	16,757
LED	19,960	36.10	36.12	0.02	401
Total					127,875

Details for the kWh adjustments at site for lighting are provided below.

*Negative value = over-reported

Detail for kWh adjustments at site for Heat Pump Water Heaters ("HPWH") and refrigerators are provided below.

2012 Reporting	Units	UES	Target UES	UES difference	Impact *
		reported	Appendix 4	(planning – reported)	(unit x savings)
HPWH	1	1,189	1,323	134	134
Refrigerators	409	108	65	(43)	(17,630)
2013 Reporting					
HPWH	2	881	1,323	442	884
Refrigerators	125	71	65	(6)	(793)

*Negative value = over-reported

The summary of savings calculation adjustments are provided in Table 2 and Table 3.

Table 22012 Home Energy Savings Adjustment Calculations

	2012 kWh (Gen)	Source/notes
Home Energy Savings	6,636,581	Annual report 2012 - table 6
	(283)	kWh adjustment to insulation savings per program administrator error
	(358,352)	LED and CFL kWh adjustments to align planning and reporting assumptions
	147	Heat pump water heater kWh savings to align planning and reporting assumptions
	(19,335)	Refrigerator kWh adjustment to align planning and reporting assumptions
	(377,823)	Total kWh Adjustment
	6,258,758	Revised Home Energy Savings (kWh)

Table 32013 Home Energy Savings Adjustment Calculations

	2013 kWh (Gen)	Source/notes
Home Energy Savings	9,213,887	Annual report 2013 - table 6
	(10,842)	kWh adjustment to insulation savings per program administrator error
	140,241	LED and CFL kWh adjustments to align planning and reporting assumptions
	969	Heat pump water heater kWh savings to align planning and reporting assumptions
	(870)	Refrigerator kWh adjustment to align planning and reporting assumptions
	129,498	Total kWh Adjustment
	9,343,385	Revised Home Energy Savings (kWh)

Home Energy Reports

A third party impact evaluation was recently completed on Washington's Home Energy Reports program for the first 18 months, through January 2014. Results from the evaluation provided verifiable energy savings that were achieved by customers who were participants in Home Energy Reports program.

As a result, the Company is adjusting the reported savings from this program to reflect the savings verified through the evaluation. The impact on savings reporting adjustments sis provided in Tables 4 and 5.

 Table 4

 2012 Home Energy Reports Adjustment Calculations

	2012 kWh (Gen)	Source/notes
Home Energy Reports	1,950,461	Annual report 2012 - table 6
	1,674,797	Evaluated kWh savings at site WA Home Energy Report Evaluation
	4,564	Savings uplift in other energy efficiency programs identified in evaluation
	1,670,233	Verified Net Savings (kWh)
	1,831,745	Verified Net Savings at Generation including line loss percentage
	(118,716)	Savings Reporting Adjustment for Home Energy Reports 2012

Table 52013 Home Energy Reports Adjustment Calculations

	2013 kWh (Gen)	<u>Source/notes</u>
Home Energy Reports	6,048,908	Annual report 2013 - table 6
	5,841,197	Evaluated kWh savings at site WA Home Energy Report Evaluation
	10,953	Savings uplift in other energy efficiency identified in evaluation
	5,830,244	Verified Net Savings (kWh)
	C 204 020	Varified Net Covings at Constantion including line lass networks
	6,394,029	vermed wet savings at Generation including line loss percentage
	345 121	Savings Reporting Adjustment (kWh)for Home Energy Reports 2013
	5-3,121	savings reporting Adjustment (Komportione Energy reports 2015

Northwest Energy Efficiency Alliance ("NEEA")

Utilizing the NEEA baseline assumptions incorporated in setting the Company's 2012 and 2013 biennial target, NEEA's revised results for 2012 and 2013 require adjustments to the saving reported in the 2012 and 2013 Report on Conservation Acquisition which reflected the savings as "preliminary". The consensus agreement regarding frozen planning assumptions was in place when the Company prepared the annual Reports on Conservation Acquisition in Washington however, NEEA had yet to finalize its 2012-2013 savings results.

The following table documents the adjustments to the Company's NEEA savings initially reported in the 2012 and 2013 Reports on Conservation Acquisitions filed in March, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The revised savings were provided by NEEA to PacifiCorp in a May 21, 2014, Memorandum, which explains the assumptions, methodology, and the impact on final reported savings. See Appendix 3 for detail.

The savings calculation adjustment is provided in Table 6.

Revised NEEA 2012 and 2013 Savings									
NEEA Savings Pacific Power Washington									
	Annual saving reported kWh (Site)	Revised savings kWh (Site)	Annual saving reported kWh (Gen)	Revised savings kWh (Gen)	Net Adjustment kWh (Gen)				
2012	12,439,200	13,840,800	13,610,780	15,154,037	1,543,257				
2013	15,384,000	13,402,800	16,871,633	14,651,941	(2,219,692)				
Total Adj					(676,435)				

Table 6Revised NEEA 2012 and 2013 Savings

Production Efficiency

Years of Implementation

The Company began a detailed study of the potential energy savings from production efficiency ("PE") in 2011; with the initial implementation of identified projects beginning in 2012. Final study work was completed in 2012.

Program Description

In 2011, the Company began studying potential energy efficiency upgrades to the electrical systems at the thermal and wind power production facilities. The Company fully owns one thermal plant that provides power to Washington State as well as four wind projects. The Company jointly owns two additional thermal plants that also provide power to Washington; Jim Bridger and Hermiston.

Program Details

Project work began in 2012 starting at the Chehalis power plant based on studies completed in 2011. Also in the 2012-2013 biennium the Company worked with joint owners at Hermiston and Jim Bridger to discuss approvals for projects identified as cost-effective. As part of this discussion, in 2013 a significant amount of analysis was devoted to understanding and vetting an appropriate methodology for determining cost effectiveness of projects at the production level. This work was done in collaboration with the Advisory Group and completed in early 2014. The PE methodology was then applied to the previously identified projects to be re-screened.

As part of the rescreen of projects, the lighting upgrade project that was forecast in 2011 was deemed to be not cost effective. A different project completed in the 2013 year at Jim Bridger allowed us to capture our projected energy savings for that year in place of the forecasted lighting upgrade.

The wind facilities owned by the Company showed no cost effective efficiency improvements available.

The following table details the specific projects completed in the 2012 – 2013 biennium.

	2012 - 2013 Bennium Reporting - Production								
	Year	Energy Conservation Measure	Plant Level Savings (MWh/yr)	Percent Owned by PacifiCorp	Washington Cost Allocation	Projected Savings in Washington (MWh/yr)	Actual Washington Savings (MWh/yr)		
Chehalis Plant							· · · ·		
	2012	Electric Heatrace Runtime	39	100.00%	22.47%	8.7633	8.7633		
	2012	Electric Heater Thermostat	37	100.00%	22.4 7 %	8.3139	8.3139		
	2012	Compressed Air Dryer Controls	29	100.00%	22.47%	6.5163	6.5163		
	2013	Lighting Upgrade	246	100.00%	22.47%	55.2762	0		
Jim Bridger Plant				1					
	2013	Transformer Upgrade	385	66.66%	21.56%	0	55.3317996		
					Total Projected	78.8697			
			-		Total Achieved		78.9252996		

The biennial costs associated with production efficiency requirements was \$296,442.50. The \$231,495 production efficiency expenditures reported in the 2012 Annual Report on Conservation Acquisition is included in the \$296,442.50 total.

Production efficiency results are included in the adjustment section since they were not previously included in 2012 or 2013 annual report(s).

Distribution Efficiency

Previous Activities

In the 2010-2011 biennium, the Company performed a detailed study of the potential energy savings from distribution efficiency ("DEI") on a subset of Washington distribution circuits referred to as Tier 1 circuits. Study results indicated that cost effective energy savings from voltage reduction were possible, and the Company began planning a second study while performing detailed construction cost estimating on a pilot project to be implemented in the 2012-2013 biennium.

Current Biennium Activities and Findings

In the 2012-2013 biennium, voltage optimization projects were managed through a pilot. A second study was commissioned on a subset of circuits referred to as Tier 2. These circuits were less promising (based on the lessons learned during the Tier 1 analysis), and the Company sought to identify where the break point existed for projects not deemed cost effective. In total, the most promising 27% of the Company's Washington circuits were studied for energy savings potential.

Analysis of the pilot data and each project's cost effectiveness took place throughout 2012 and into the first quarter of 2013. Four circuits were included in the pilot and more than half of the total cost was associated with the required metering improvements. One small fixed capacitor was added to during the pilot with the remainder of the Tier 1 study recommended improvements focused on balancing load and adjusting voltage control settings. Total pilot cost was \$269,855, and the collected data was evaluated with the

Simplified Measurement and Verification Protocol approved by the Northwest Council's Regional Technical Forum ("RTF").

As detailed in the Company's 2013 Integrated Resource Plan (Appendix E), post project review showed all four circuits failing the cost effectiveness test, and the total energy saved was estimated to be less than 10 percent of the value initially forecasted for the projects. Total savings could not be statistically confirmed.

The Tier 2 study, evaluated in early 2013, included some circuits electrically adjacent to promising Tier 1 candidate circuits. The costs associated with the required Tier 2 circuit improvements, coupled with the costs associated with the adjacent Tier 1 circuit improvements, showed that these most promising circuit-pair projects were not projected to be cost effective. The pilot findings also indicated that other candidate circuits' potentials were overestimated from what the company might expect if the projects were implemented. Because the Company's distribution system planning process already provides relatively low voltage settings, the available efficiencies from voltage reduction are very small, costly to implement and difficult to measure. Based on current operations and analysis available, the Company anticipates no further cost effective DEI energy savings are available in its Washington service territory.

The table below shows the biennial costs associated with Washington's RCW 19.285 distribution efficiency requirements. The \$146,618 DEI expenditures reported in the 2012 Annual Report on Conservation Acquisition is included in the \$501,906 DEI Total.

I-937 DEI Activities	2012 Cost		2013 Cost	
WA Studies Total	\$	233,873	\$	6,672
Tier 1 Study	\$	32,027	\$	0
Tier 2 Study	\$	201,847	\$	6,672
WA Pilot Implementation	\$	268,033	\$	1,821
Walla Walla (Mill Creek)	\$	152,091	\$	812
Yakima (Clinton)	\$	115,942	\$	1,009
DEI Total	\$	501,906	\$	8,493

Ongoing and Future Distribution Efficiency

Pacific Power's existing design practices have effectively allowed substantial voltage reduction for decades with energy savings being neither measured nor reported. The incremental cost to further reduce or optimize voltage levels is relatively high and is not currently justified by the predicted energy savings.

The Company's DEI evaluation to date is a product of our current practices, together with industry knowledge and current technology costs. In order to stay current in these areas, Pacific Power updates and files the Smart Grid Annual Report with Washington each year. Voltage reduction and other distribution technologies are included in this document and reevaluated by engineering and management for each updated report. Additionally,

the engineering staff investigates and shares industry best practices and improves its standards and guidelines as needed to ensure consistency. If cost-effective DEI opportunities arise in the future, due to improvements in equipment and CVR technology, measurement and verification protocols and/or project economics, the Company will include them in future conservation forecasts and biennial targets in compliance with WAC 480-109-010 and RCW 19.285.

Adjustment Summary

The net effect of all adjustments applied to the 2012-2013 biennial targets is a decrease of 590 MWh or 0.07 aMW. These adjustments include the effects of line losses. Table 7 provides detail by adjustment type in MWh and reporting year.

Adjustments by Type and Year (MWh at generation)						
Adjustment (MWh)	2012	2013	Total			
Refrigerator Recycling	20	-	20			
Home Energy Savings	(378)	138	(239)			
Home Energy Reports	(119)	345	226			
NEEA	1,543	(2,220)	(676)			
Production Efficiency	24	55	79			
Total	1,091	(1,681)	(590)			
aMW	0.12	(0.19)	(0.07)			

Table 7

Table 8 provides detail by adjustment type in kWh and reporting year.

Table 8							
Adjustments by Type and Year (kWh at generation)							
Adjustment (kWh)	2012	2013	Total				
Refrigerator Recycling	20,217	-	20,217				
Home Energy Savings	(377,751)	138,260	(239,491)				
Home Energy Reports	(118,716)	345,121	226,405				
NEEA	1,543,257	(2,219,692)	(676,435)				
Production Efficiency	23,594	55,332	78,925				
Total	1,090,600	(1,680,979)	(590,379)				

Supporting Documents for Conservation

Provided below are links to supporting documents relied upon in support of the Company's planning assumptions and associated reporting of actual savings results for the Biennial Conservation Target for 2012 and 2013.

1. Assessment of Long-Term, System-Wide Potential for Demand-Side and Other Supplemental Resources, Volumes I and II (March 31, 2011) – Conservation Potential Assessment

http://www.pacificorp.com/es/dsm.html

2. 2012 and 2013 Annual Report(s) on Conservation Acquisition

http://www.pacificorp.com/es/dsm/washington.html

3. Revised Report on its Ten-year Achievable Conservation Potential and its Biennial Conservation Target for 2012 and 2013, filed in Docket UE-111880 on January 31, 2012

http://www.utc.wa.gov/docs/Pages/DocketLookup.aspx?FilingID=111880

4. Demand-side Management Business Plan(s) including November 2012 Update and October 23, 2013 Update filed in Docket UE-111880.

http://www.utc.wa.gov/docs/Pages/DocketLookup.aspx?FilingID=111880

5. Independent third-party process and impact evaluations completed during the 2012-2013 biennium, validating program results, assessing ex-post program savings and providing information used to inform future conservation potential assessments, conservation forecasts and the establishment of targets.

http://www.pacificorp.com/es/dsm/washington.html

6. Collaborative group documents completed that are used to demonstrate Company's and other utilities' alignment with planning methodologies used by the Northwest Power and Conservation Council. This document with Company specific information is provided as Appendix 3 Comparison of Regional Methodologies of the Company's Ten-year Achievable Conservation Potential and its Biennial Conservation Target for 2012 and 2013, filed in Docket UE-111880 on January 31, 2012.

http://www.utc.wa.gov/docs/Pages/DocketLookup.aspx?FilingID=111880

Appendices

Appendix 1 – 2012-2013 Plan Condition Requirements and Compliance

Appendix 2 – Washington Verification of Savings Review

Appendix 3 – NEEA Memorandum of 2012-2013 Final Savings